Vestavia Hills
Library Board of Trustees Agenda
June 25, 2025
4:00 PM

Meeting Items

Call to Order - April MacLennan, Chair
Approval Of Today's Agenda

Approval Of Minutes from April 23, 2025
Director's Report - Taneisha Tucker

HwnN e

New Business (Budget Review)

General Fund Proposed Budget 2025-2026
State Aid Budget 2025-2026

Fund 13 Proposed Donations Budget 2025-2026
Capital Fund Proposed Budget 2025-2026

® N O U

Informational Items

Adjournment

Page 1 of 21



Library Board Meeting Minutes
April 23, 2025

I. Call to Order — April MacLennan, Chair
The Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest Board of Trustees met in regular session on Wednesday, April
23,2025 at 4pm.

Present:
Ms. April MacLennan — Chair
Ms. Susan Swagler — Vice Chair
Mr. Larry Cochran — Member
Mr. Christopher Gerety — Member
Ms. Erica Barnes— Member
Mayor Ashley Curry — City Liaison
Ms. Elise Bodenheimer — Friends Chair
Ms. Ann Hamiter — Foundation Chair
Ms. Taneisha Tucker — Library Director
Mr. Daniel Tackett — Deputy Director
Mr. Todd Richardson — Marketing Department Head
Ms. Marie Nash — Administrative Assistant
Mr. Joe Perez — Guest

Absent:
Dr. Jimmy Bartlett — Board Emeritus
Mr. Jeff Downes — City Manager
Ms. Bethany Mitchell — Recorder

I1. Approval of Today’s Agenda
Ms. Swagler motioned to approve the April 23, 2025 amended agenda. Ms. Barnes seconded the motion.
The amended agenda for today’s meeting was unanimously approved.

II1. Approval of Minutes from Wednesday, February 26, 2025
Ms. Swagler motioned to approve the minutes from February 26, 2025. Ms. Barnes seconded the
motion. The BOT minutes from February 26, 2025 were unanimously approved.

IV. Director’s Report — Ms. Tucker

Included in the packet. The two Easter egg hunt events were a huge success. The events took place at
Liberty Park and Wald Park and totaled approximately 900 children in attendance. UAB’s Department
of Political Science and Public Administration awarded library staff member Derek Anderson as the
2025 Unsung Hero awardee for his impact as an outstanding public servant.

V. Library Board Packet Items
a. News Articles and Correspondence
Included in the packet.
b. Marketing Report — Mr. Richardson
Included in the packet. Mr. Richardson spoke about the growth in outreach and partnerships.
Active partnerships with the library include Beth Ann Reads, Alabama Audubon, Cultivate

1|BOT Minutes April 2025

Page 2 of 21



Wellness, Grace Klein Community, Black Homeschoolers of Birmingham, Better Basics, Heart
Gallery Alabama, Children’s of Alabama, and more. In the future, outreach statistics may be
separated from marketing statistics for ease of understanding.

c. Monthly Statistical Reports — February and March 2025

Included in the packet.

d. Current Budget Report

Included in the packet.

e. Balance Sheets, Fund 12 and Fund 13

Included in the packet.

V1. Unfinished Business

a.

b.

Eastside Library Update — Ms. Tucker

A work session meeting is scheduled with the city manager and city council on Monday May
12, 5-6pm. The meeting will focus on planning for the potential Eastside Library such as
location, costs, timelines, and more.

Pedestrian Bridge / Foundation Donor Event — Ms. Tucker

A donor appreciation event on behalf of the Foundation will take place potentially at the end
of September as a parking lot party. Vestavia Hills’ 75% anniversary party is tentatively set
for October 23. Mayor Curry requested that the library include some of its historical
information for the 75" anniversary city event.

VII. New Business

a.

Extended Hours — Mr. Tackett

Mr. Tackett requested extending library hours to 9pm for the high school exam season on
May 15, 19, and 20. Mr. Gerety motioned to approve the extended library hours. Ms.
Swagler seconded the motion. The extended library hours were unanimously approved.

Early Closure Request / Teen Department — Mr. Tackett

Mr. Tackett requested closing the library early on May 27 at 6pm for the Teen Summer
Reading kickoff event, which is a laser tag event. Mr. Gerety motioned to approve the early
closure request. Ms. Swagler seconded the motion. The early closure request was
unanimously approved.

BOT Initiative: Library App Update — Ms. Tucker

The library’s current app is from Communico. It costs $60,000 total for the required three-
year commitment, and services included are the app itself, program management, room
reservations, and digital signage screen options. Ms. Tucker spoke with Cinnamon McCulley
about updating the library’s website as a potential alternative to changing the library’s app,
and Ms. Tucker plans to meet with her soon for further discussion.

BOT Initiative: Strategic Planning Update — Ms. Tucker
Ms. Tucker is reviewing a strategic planning proposal from Barika Hamilton.

Fines — Ms. Tucker

The O’Neal Library and Pinson Library no longer charge fines. On May 23, Hoover will stop
collecting fines. The Homewood Library is going fine free this summer to generate higher
summer program registration. If a patron has up to $100 in fines and they sign up for summer

2|BOT Minutes April 2025

Page 3 of 21



f

8.

h.

reading, the Homewood Library will waive the fines. “Fines” is defined as overdue fees only.
The libraries are not relinquishing money for lost materials. These charges will still be
enforced.

Last fiscal year, the Vestavia Hills Library received approximately $13,000 from overdue
material fees since 2023. Replacements (books and materials lost) totaled $7,000, and fines
paid online totaled $3,000. The grand total for everything was $24,636.71. The total for
waived fines was $4,338.

This fiscal year, the total paid fines was $13,362.19. Waived fines totaled $2,500. Ms.
Tucker stated that unlike some other libraries, fine money goes to Fund 13 to be used for
library needs such as programming, continuing education for staff, building maintenance, and
more. However, the library gains approximately $70,000 annually from passport services,
funds that might help balance any potential losses from going fine free.

The BOT discussed the pros and cons of eliminating fines, offering an amnesty period, or
other potential ideas. After the discussion, Mr. Gerety motioned to:

e Approve eliminating fines

e Continue charging for lost books

e Continue charging for hotspots

e Revisit the elimination of fines in six months
Ms. MacLennan seconded the motion. The motion to eliminate fines under the parameters
listed above was unanimously approved.

Study Room Policy — Ms. Tucker
Ms. Tucker asked the board to review the study room policy for any updates or concerns and
vote on any changes at the next board meeting.

Potential Movie Night with Baumhower’s — Ms. Tucker
A potential partnership with Baumhower's Victory Grille to offer a movie night is in discussion.
More information is forthcoming.

Budget Considerations — Ms. Tucker

Jani King has been the library’s janitorial service since 2012. Recently, they increased their
fee from $25,000 a year to $65,000 a year for the same amount of service. As a result, the
library has ceased using their services. Staff member Nathaniel Gilliard was promoted from a
part-time custodian to a full-time custodian to take over janitorial services. However, he
cannot work seven days a week. Mr. Downes has given permission to hire a part-time
custodian to work with Mr. Gilliard in October, and the budget shows a $20,000 increase for
compensation accordingly. Ms. Tucker stated that she also wishes to hire a part-time
marketing assistant for Mr. Richardson.

Ms. Tucker wants to ask Mr. Downes to allow the library to promote an award-winning
employee that is currently an assistant to a manger position. The employee not only performs
library-related duties but also runs the Makerspace, assists with city projects, and performs
other tasks. Ms. Tucker stated that the library is limited in its capabilities for upward mobility
in promotions. For example, there are currently no Grade 10s at the library. Creating higher
positions would be an opportunity for exemplary staff to start moving up.

3IBOT Minutes April 2025

Page 4 of 21



Last year, Ms. Tucker increased funding in Community Involvement. In addition, the city
has provided funding for outreach. As we grow to the east, Ms. Tucker stated that she will
request additional funding for programs. There is currently $555,344.64 in Fund 13. This
year’s total Fund 13 budget is $181,000, of which the library will likely spend half of it.

VIII. Committee Reports

IX. Friends Report — Ms. Bodenheimer
The Friends have two remaining programs this season. In May, the Friends board will meet to discuss
programming and board members for 2025-2026.

X. Foundation Report — Ms. Hamiter

The Foundation board met on March 12. Foundation board members, Lynsey Gunn and Michael
Sweeney, resigned because they are both soon moving out of the state. Meg Burton, a Vestavia Hills
resident, is interested in joining the Foundation board. Official word on the position will be forthcoming.

The Foundation discussed hiring a qualified individual vs. a firm to begin the fundraising process. Ms.
Tucker will meet with City Manager Downes to discuss the possibilities and pros and cons of each.

Partners in Reading is the Foundation’s current focus. Ms. Hamiter thanked Ms. Swagler for her
tremendous efforts reaching out to Vestavia Hills businesses for the past two years. The library gave the
Foundation a $15,000 budget, and they are close to meeting their goal.

As of March 31, the Foundation has $224,381.86. This amount does not include any money they have
collected for the Partners in Reading sponsorships. The Jefferson County Commission gave the
Foundation a $5,000 grant for the Partners in Reading Summer Reading program.

The next Foundation meeting will be May 14 at 8:30am. Ms. Hamiter stated that anyone interested in
the Foundation who can’t make the board meetings can still serve on a Foundation committee. She
added that a person doesn’t have to be on the Foundation board to be impactful to the Foundation. She
requested that the BOT direct anyone interested in being a part of the Foundation to her, Ms. Tucker, or
Ms. Swagler for more information.

XI. Informational Items
There were no informational items.

XII. Adjournment
The meeting adjourned at 5:05pm.

4|BOT Minutes April 2025

Page 5 of 21



Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest
2025-2026 Proposed General Budget Narrative
June 20, 2025

Compensation Compensation 01-70-5010-000-500

$16,014 PART-TIME CUSTODIAN — Position will assist janitorial staff and bring staffing to 1.5
FTE.

$3,265 DEREK ANDERSON PROMOTION — New Position, New Step and Grade on Library Scale.
Makerspace Manager — Derek Anderson works in the Teen Department as a library assistant.
Still, he has always ordered equipment, managed and coordinated programs in the
Makerspace, in addition to duties performed by other library assistants. | request that his pay
be commensurate with the additional duties he performs. Tax and benefits are not included in
this amount.

$16,014 PART-TIME MARKETING ASSISTANT - As Marketing Department Head, Todd
Richardson oversees all aspects of content creation, channel distribution, marketing outlets,
media relations, online presence, digital signage, partnerships, and county-wide outreach
while staying current on new advertising norms, tools, and best practices. The scope of these
duties has rapidly increased, and assistance is needed to maintain and further develop the
library’s social media presence, media relations, digital signage, production schedule, and a
second for outreach events and communications.

Employee Employee Training 01-70-5045-000-500
Training
$2,550 ASSOCIATION OF LIBRARY SERVICES TO CHILDREN (ALSC) CONVENTION, Buffalo, NY,
October 1 -3, 2026, April Moon, Children’s Department Head

$16,000
$2,550 AMERICAN LIBRARY ASSOCIATION ANNUAL CONFERENCE, Chicago, IL, June 26-30,
$1,000 2026, Terri Leslie, Adult Services Department Head
INCREASE
$2,800 CORE FORUM, Denver, CO, November 11-14, 2025 Daniel Tackett, Deputy Director
$3,100 PUBLIC LIBRARY ASSOCIATION, Minneapolis, MN, April 1 —4, 2026, Tara Vines and Lexie
Rueve
$4,200 TYLER CONNECT, Las Vegas, NV, April 7-10, 2026, Pam Parson and Marie Nash
$800 ALABAMA PUBLIC LIBRARY CONFERENCE, 2026, Date and Location TBD, Derek Anderson,
Teen Services Assistant / Makerspace Coordinator
Membership Membership and Dues 01-70-5050-000-500
and Dues
$1,200 American Library Association Individual Dues — Taneisha Tucker, Daniel Tackett, Terri
$4,700 Leslie, April Moon, Tara Vines, Lexie Rueve

Page 6 of 21



$700 INCREASE

$400 Alabama Library Association Dues (3 professionals and two paraprofessionals)

$700 Movie Licensing USA fee to comply with public performance guidelines for the DVDs that
are shown publicly at Adult, Teen, and Children's programs.

$500 JCPLA Organizational/Institutional Dues
$500 Chamber of Commerce Membership and Luncheons for staff
$200 AAPPA Memberships — Daniel Tackett and Marie Nash

$1,200 Public Library Directors Association of Alabama

Travel and
Conference

$6,000

Travel and Conference 01-70-5051-000-500
Level Funding
$2,800 CORE FORUM, Denver, CO, November 11-14, 2025, Taneisha Tucker, Library Director

$3,200 PUBLIC LIBRARY ASSOCIATION CONFERENCE — Minneapolis, MN, April 1 -4, 2026,
Taneisha Tucker, Library Director

Physicals Drug
Screen

$700

$200 INCREASE

Physicals/Drug Screen 01-70-5065-000-500

$700 Drug screens and background checks. Drug screens and background checks are
performed for each new employee; however, due to funding and volunteer inconsistency,
these checks are not performed on volunteers. Due to part-time employee turnover, we run
more screens and checks than with full-time employees. The prices for background checks vary
(520 - $150) based on the number of addresses a potential employee has had.

Vehicle
Allowance

$500

Vehicle Allowance 01-70-5070-000-500
Level Funding

$500 Mileage for personal vehicles that are used for library business.

Postage and
Mailing

$1,150

Postage and Mailing 01-70-5090-000-500
Level Funding

$150 Return of books and materials for various reasons. Mailing voter registration packages
along with correspondence on behalf of the library.

$1,000 Postage for direct mail pieces as needed.

Supplies / Print
& Office

Supplies / Print and Office 01-70-5100-000-500

Level Funding

Page 7 of 21




$8,000
$5,500 Supplies include: laminator film, thermal roll paper, copier, and receipt paper, wrap roll
film, all office supplies, printing and crafting supplies, printer ink, laminator film, foam core,
magic erasers, prizes, crafting supplies and storage bins for all departments to include card
stock, construction paper, paint, crafting glues, etc.

$1,500 Summer Reading Outreach Supplies
$1,000 Ink for HP Large Format Printer (Children Department)

Supplies / Lib Supplies/Lib Process 01-70-5101-000-500
Process
Level Funding
$10,000
$8,000 RFID tags for books and discs, barcodes, cases, and inserts for DVDs, Blu-rays, and CDs,
labels, stickers, various heavy-duty tapes and glues, book jacket covers, cases, CD polishing
pads, etc. Depending on the item, processing costs from the vendor fluctuate between $5 and
S7 per item.

$2,000 Marketing materials

Supplies / Other | Supplies/Other 01-70-5105-000-500
$9,000 Level Funding

$2,000 Hanging bags, name tags, business cards, stationery, display holders, signage, seasonal
and summer reading decorations, easels, etc.

$1,000 Craft supplies and equipment for school visits.
$1,000 Department décor and merchandising
$2,500 Library promotional materials. bookmarks, keychains, bags, etc.

$2,500 Makerspace Supplies

Supplies / Janitorial Supplies 01-70-5110-000-500
Janitorial
$10,000 Supplies include hand towels, bath tissue, soap, trash liners, cleaners, floor cleaner,
$12,000 deodorizers, dust mops, sanitizers, disinfectant wipes, air fresheners, toilet paper, magic
erasers, etc.

$2,000
INCREASE $2,000 Floor buffer
Previously paid JaniKing to buff floors. This work can now be done in-house.
Gasoline Gasoline 01-70-5140-000-500
$1,800 Level Funding

$1,800 Gasoline for two city vehicles.

Page 8 of 21



Maintenance
Contracts

$213,622

$10,220
DECREASE

TECHNOLOGY
$187,692

$11,042
INCREASE

PASSPORTS &
MAKERSPACE
$730

NEW SECTION

BUILDING AND
CITYWIDE
$25,200

$18,392
DECREASE DUE
TO REMOVAL OF
JANIKING

Maintenance Contracts 01-70-5210-000-500

TECHNOLOGY ($187,692)

Adobe Creative Suite Licenses, 10 - $11,900 (12,400 come back and recalculate)
AlScan Security Camera Maintenance - $7,500

Ameritek Konica Public Computer Maintenance - $2,200
Bibliotheca Gates, Pads, Self-checks, lockers maintenance - $26,500
Communico Interface for Smartphone App - $5,000
Comprise Kiosk Maintenance - $3,700

Comprise Smart Access Maintenance - $870

Comprise Smart Alec and Money Manager Maintenance - $2,525
Dell Network Host Server Maintenance - $2,500

DocuSigh Account $550

Emergent Systems Brocade Switches - $1,200

Faronics Deep Freeze - $4,100

GoDaddy Hosting Service - $50

Idrive $160

JCLC Computer Connections - $51,460

JCLC Databases - $9,900

JCLC Decision Center - $2,580

JCLC Email Accounts - $2,690

JCLC WiFi System - $1,700

JCLC -ICS Cloud-based Backup System (NEW ITEM)- $6,900
Johnson Controls Simplex Grinnell Security Alarm Co. $6,600
Lynda.com Linkedin Learning $325

Microsoft Server Licenses - $5,000

RJ Young Printer Maintenance $6,000

ScannX, Scanner Maintenance $790

Siteground DNS Hosting $195

SIP Licenses for CC Readers and Self-Checks - $5,500
T-Mobile Hotspots with Unlimited 4G - $16,000

VMWare Platform Renewal - $3,300

Windows Link Subscription (NEW ITEM) - $550

PASSPORTS AND MAKERSPACE ($730)
Appointlet Annual Subscription - $200

Cricut Access Subscription - $120

Polycam Subscription for 3D Modeling - $410

BUILDING AND CITYWIDE ($25,200)

Window Cleaning - $8,500

CW Bagby Elevator maintenance and service - $3,000
CW Guardian Pest Control - S600

CW Turf Management - Landscaping - $9,500

CW Water Treatment of the closed loop $3,600

Maintenance
Repair Office

Maintenance Repair Office Equipment 01-70-5310-000-500

Page 9 of 21



Equipment

$1,000

Level Funding

$1,000 Funds used for small equipment and furniture (leather) cleaning and repairs.

Maintenance
Repair Small
Equipment

$1,500

Maintenance Repair Small Equipment 01-70-5350-000-500
Level Funding

$1,500 Request funds to repair items such as the 3D printers, security cameras, wheelchair lift,
etc.

Maintenance
Repair - Vehicles

$1,600

Maintenance Repair - Vehicles 01-70-5370-000-500
Level Funding

$1,600 Cost for monthly maintenance for 2 Pathfinders.

Maintenance
Repair Building

$55000

$15,000
INCREASE

Maintenance Repair Building 01-70-5380-000-500

$55,000 Pressure washing the building, tree removal, building leaks, downspout repairs,
masonry work, door, and glass repairs, touch up painting, repairs, landscaping (adding pine
straw, replacing plants) lighting and sensors, striping the parking lots, carpet cleaning, special
wax for non-carpeted areas, repair walls repaint chair rails areas, etc.

Note: 2022/2023

$25,000 Total Budget
$27,428 Total Spent
-$2,428 or 9% Over Budget

Note: 2023/2024
$30,000 Total Budget
$37,638 Total Spent or 25% Over Budget

Note: 2024/2025
$40,000 Total Budget
$35,799.67 Total Spent as of June 2025 with 10.50% of the budget remaining.

Maintenance
Repair HVAC

$25,000

Maintenance Repair HVAC 01-70-5385-000-500
Level Funding

No longer under a maintenance contract. Will pay for service as needed.
Boilers were replaced in 2024, so maintenance costs should be stable.

Maintenance
Repair Electrical
and Plumbing

$25,000

Maintenance Repair Electrical & Plumbing 01-70-5385-000-500

$18,500 Maintenance of water pumps, sewer tank repairs and replacements, toilet, faucet
replacements and repairs, etc.

Page 10 of 21




$10,000
INCREASE

$1,500 Annual sewer tank inspection with Morrow Water.
$5,000 Backflow inspection and repairs ($2,000 increase)

Note: 2022/2023

$7,500 Total Budget
$7,638 Total Spent

-$137 or 1.8% Over Budget

Note: 2023/2024

$7,500 Total Budget

$14,339 Total Spent

-$6,838.51. Or 91.18% Over Budget

Note: 2024/2025
$15,000 Total Budget
$14,212.55 Total Spent as of June 2025

Utilities
$153,000

$3,000 Increase

Utilities 01-70-5700-000-500

2023/2024

$138,000 Budget

$148,406 Spent

$103,846 Alabama Power Company
$12,249 Birmingham Water Works
$32,312 Spire

2024/2025

$150,000 Budget

$98,066 Spent as of May 2025
$68,485 Alabama Power Company
$6,266 Birmingham Water Works
$23,317 Spire

Communications
(Telephone and
Internet)

$16,000

$3,000 Decrease

Comm (Telephone and Internet) 01-70-5720-000-500

$9,000 Altaworx $748 per month (Level Funding)

$2,000 Charter / Spectrum Communications $160 per month ($10 per month increase)
$900 AT&T $75 per month (Level Funding)

$1,100 YouTube / Google TV $90 per month (Level Funding)

$1,000 Verizon $85 per month

$2,000 Miscellaneous Purchases (Zoom, Phone Charges, etc.)

Page 11 of 21



Professional Professional Consultants 01-70-5840-000-500
Consultants
Level Funding

$7,000

$5,000 - Technology consultations.

$2,000 - Professional development, consultants, staff day activities.
Community Community Involvement 01-70-5940-000-500
Involvement

$24,000 CHILDREN'S DEPARTMENT PROGRAMS ($2,000 INCREASE)

$47,000 $3,500 Family Nights (October — April)

$2,500 Easter and Spring Break

$7,000 Increase | $2,500 Saturday Library Storytimes with Ms. Courtney

$5,000 Summer Reading Performers (supplemented by Foundation & Junior Board)

$2,000 Tween Programs

$3,000 Storytime Materials and Craft Supplies

$3,000 Prizes (Summer Reading and weekly prizes)

$2,500 Special Programs (Fall Carnival, Father Daughter Tea, Nutcracker Ballet, Salsa Dancing)

$7,000 ADULT DEPARTMENT PROGRAMS ($1,000 INCREASE)

$1,000 Summer Reading and Outreach programs, incentives, prizes

$3,000 Craft Lab, Movement Programs and Supplies

$1,200 Book Clubs, Regular Programs, Holidays, Seasonal, Spelling Bee, Art Council programs
$1,300 Spring Outdoor Concert

$500 Door/Contests Prizes

$7,000 TEEN DEPARTMENT PROGRAMS ($2,000 INCREASE)

$1,000 Teen Art Market

$1,500 Weekly Programs

$2,000 Summer Reading, Games and Prizes

$2,500 ACT Workshop

$1,000 MAKERSPACE PROGRAMS

$5,500 2 MARKETING PROGRAMS (Community Partners / Special Programs / Carnival)

$2,500 BEANSTACK FOR SUMMER REGISTRATION

Outreach / Outreach / Liberty Park and Cahaba Heights 01-70-5940-002-500 ($3,000 INCREASE)
Liberty Park and
Cahaba Heights | $5,000 Two events for families at Cahaba Heights and Liberty Park for more engagement in all
areas of Vestavia Hills.

$10,000
$5,000 Children’s Summer Outreach to LP, CH, and local daycares
$3,000
INCREASE
Marketing Marketing — Library 01-70-5940-003-500

Page 12 of 21



Library and City
$6,000 Printing — marketing materials, miscellaneous print projects and summer reading
$11,850 calendar and mailers

$1,405 $1,000 Facebook and Instagram Boost Posts (Request a procurement card for annual
INCREASE purchases)

$1,000 Event promotions — merchandise, giveaways and marketing materials for annual events
including: | Love America Day, Summer Reading, Back to School in the Hills and more.

$3,860 SUBSCRIPTIONS (Moved from Maintenance Contracts) $1405 INCREASE
Canva - $300

Shutterstock - $200

SmugMug - $110

Envato - $200

SiteKiosk - $1,200

OptiSigns - $450

Temi Subscription (Robot) (NEW ITEM) - $1,150

Zapier Al Process Automation Subscription (NEW ITEM) - $250

Purchase Office | Purchase Office and Computer Equipment 01-70-8100-000-500
and Computer

Equipment $3,000 Kiosks for Children and Adult Departments
$2,000 Dell Surface Pro (Daniel Tackett)

$26,650 $3,100 iMac (Rick Moody Replacement Computer)
$8,000 4 Dell AlO Desktop Replacement Computers

$26,650 $3,000 2 Replacement Exercise Desks Acer eKinekt BD3

INCREASE $1,300 Storage Cabinet for Electronic Classroom
MAKERSPACE

$2,750 Bambu 3D Printer — Next Generation of 3D Printing
$3,500 Vex Robotics Small Classroom Bundle for Coding Class

Purchases Small | Purchases Small Equipment 01-70-8150-000-500
Equipment
$3,250 Desk scanners, receipt printers, shredders, RFID scanners and other equipment, small
$4,000 book carts, earbuds, print cards, library program supplies, headphones, storage items, and
magnets for the art wall, etc.

$3,300
INCREASE $500 Cold Laminator and Sheets
$250 Bluetooth Speaker
Purchases / Purchases Periodical Replacement 01-70-8205-000-500
Periodical

Replacement $5,300 EBSCO / Print Magazines
$5,000 Libby Digital Magazines

$180,000 $5,500 Kanopy
$71,000 Libby Digital Collections
$5,770 e 60,000 Adult Services

Page 13 of 21



INCREASE e 5,000 Children Department
e 16,000 Teen Department
$2,700 Universal Class
$500 Children’s Magazines
$90,000 hoopla — Midwest Tape
When the roof leaked, we eliminated all CDs and portions of videos and audio book
collections. Circulation continues to increase in digital offerings.

Purchase Books | Purchase Books 01-70-8610-000-712
Purchases / Books / Materials

$190,000

Based on the 2025 budget and Standards for Alabama Public Libraries, the materials budget
$15,000 should be 12% of the overall budget, which based on last year’s budget is $398,357. This year’s
INCREASE total request for materials is $370,000 ($180,000) Purchases Periodical Replacements plus

($190,000) Purchase Books.

Adult Materials $76,000
$66,000 Books

$5,000 Audio Books
$5,000 DVDs and Blu-rays

Children’s Materials $73,000

$60,000 Books

$6,000 Playaway Brands

$5,000 DVDs and Blu-rays (Purchase new and popular)
$1,500 Yoto Players

$500 Stem Robotic Coding Kits

Teen Materials $30,000
$18,000 Books
$12,000 Media

Acquisitions $10,000
$10,000 Materials to fill collection gaps

Technology $500

Marketing $500

2025-2026 General Budget Adjustments

Account Budget Adjustment Items Amounts
Numbers NOT INCLUDING COMPENSATION, TAXES AND BENEFITS

Page 14 of 21



01-70-5045-000-500 Employee Training $1,000
01-70-5050-000-500 Membership and Dues $700
01-70-5065-000-500 Physicals / Drug Screen $200
01-70-5110-000-500 Janitorial Supplies $2,000
01-70-5210-000-500 Maintenance Contracts -$6,617
01-70-5380-000-500 Maintenance Repair Building $15,000
01-70-5385-000-500 Maintenance Repair Electrical Plumbing $10,000
01-70-5700-000-500 Utilities $3,000
01-70-5720-000-500 Communications Telephone Internet -$3,000
01-70-5940-000-500 Community Involvement $7,000
01-70-5940-002-500 Outreach Liberty Park and Cahaba Heights $3,000
01-70-5940-003-500 Marketing $1,405
01-70-8100-000-500 Purchase Office and Computer Equipment $26,650
Purchases Small Equipment $3,300
01-70-8205-000-500 Purchases Periodical Replacement $5,770
01-70-8610-000-712 Purchase Books $15,000
TOTAL $84,408

10

Page 15 of 21



Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest
2025-2026 Fund 13 Projected Budget Narrative

June 2025
Projected Revenue With Special Requests
Account 2025/2026 Notes
Projected Amounts
Oct 1, 2025 — Sept. 30, 2026

13-00-3375-000-511 o Partners in Reading Donation
Junior Board Donations
13-00-3375-000-512 $10,000 Annual Donation
Friends Donations
13-00-3375-002-511 $15,000 Partners in Reading
Foundation Donations $10,000 Annual Donation
13-00-3375-003-511 $5,000
Memorials
13-00-3379-001-706 $20,000 Pool Cash Interest (Interest
Interest Book Revenue for 2024/2025 is $21,100)
13-00-3380-000-510 $3,000
Miscellaneous Revenue / Copier / Printers
13-00-3380-002-510 $75,000
Passport Revenue
13-00-3385-000-510 $15,000
Lost Paid, E-commerce Revenue
13-00-3390-000-510 S0
Federal Grants
13-00-3393-000-510 $17,000
Rental Income
Claim On Cash $50,000 Part-time employee / firm

focused on fundraising for

new facility
Claim On Cash $10,000 Strategic Plan Consultant
Claim On Cash $6,500 New Website
PROJECTED BUDGET TOTAL $236,500

Employee Employee Training 13-70-5045-000-500
Training

$850 KAMICON February 6-8, Birmingham, AL, up to 10 staff.
$9,000

LEVEL FUNDING

S500 PLD MID —WINTER CONFERENCE, Part-times Circulation Staff

$200 ALA E-LEARNING COURSE, Wendy Bridges

$1,000 ALABAMA LIBRARY ASSOCIATION ANNUAL CONFERENCE — Additional Staff

$1,500 — INTERNATIONAL STORYTELLING FESTIVAL, October 3-5, 2026, Jonesborough,

Page 16 of 21



TN, Children’s Department Staff, Emelia Green and Regan, Rebarchik
$1,500 — ATHENS STORYTELLING FESTIVAL, October 23-25, 2025, Athens, AL, Children’s
Department Staff, Lauren Headrick and Bradie Fowler

S500 JCPLA TRAINING — Various Staff Members

$2,950 Technology Circulation, Acquisitions and Administration Staff Workshops and
Conferences

Membership and
Dues

Membership and Dues 13-70-5050-000-500

$35,000 JCLC Membership Contingency (NEW ITEM)

$35,500 $200.00 Marketing Association
$200.00 American Institute of Graphic Arts: Professional Organization for
$500 Communication Design
$100 Other Memberships as needed.
$35,000
INCREASE
Travel and Travel and Conference 13-70-5051-000-500
Conference
$8,000 for PUBLIC LIBRARY ASSOCIATION CONFERENCE for Board of Trustees
$11,600 Minneapolis, MN, April 1-4, 2026.

$600 INCREASE

$2,600 International Public Library Fundraising Conference 2026, Taneisha Tucker,
Library Director

$1,000 Funds allocated to supplement the General Budget as needed.

Employee Misc.
Expense

$500

Employee Misc. Expense 13-70-5052-000-500
Level Funding

$500 Funds allocated to supplement the General Budget as needed.

Postage and
Mailing

$5,500

$500 INCREASE

Postage and Mailing 13-70-5090-000-500
Level Funding

$5,500 Passport postage.

Supplies / Print
& Office

$500

Supplies / Print and Office 13-70-5100-000-500
Level Funding

$500 Funds allocated to supplement the General Budget as needed.

Page 17 of 21



Supplies / Other
$2,800

$800 INCREASE

Supplies/Other 13-70-5105-000-500

$2,800 Funds allocated to supplement the General Budget as needed.

Supplies /
Janitorial

$1,000

Janitorial Supplies 13-770-5110-000-500
Level Funding

$1,000 Funds allocated to supplement the General Budget as needed.

Maintenance

Maintenance Contracts 13-70-5210-000-500

Contracts
Level Funding
$5,000
$5,000 Funds allocated to supplement the General Budget as needed.
Computer Computer Services 13-70-5220-000-500
Services / JCLC
$7,800 Library Website Upgrade and Annual Maintenance
$9,000 $1,200 Funds allocated to supplement the General Budget as needed.
$6,500
INCREASE

Maintenance
Repair Office
Equipment

$2,000

Maintenance Repair Office Equipment 13-70-5310-000-500
Level Funding

$2,000 Funds allocated to supplement the General Budget as needed.

Maintenance
Repair Building

$15,000

$11,000
INCREASE

Maintenance Repair Building 13-70-5380-000-500

$15,000 Funds allocated to supplement the General Budget as needed.

Rental Storage
Facility

$5,000

$1,000

Rental Storage Facility 13-70-5605-000-500

$5,000 U-Haul storage fee for library props, furniture, and seasonal materials

Page 18 of 21



INCREASE

Professional
Consultants

Professional Consultants 13-70-5840-000-500

$50,000 Continued payment for a firm or part-time employee to assist with fundraising

$65,000 as needed
$34,000 $10,000 Strategic Planning Consultant
INCREASE
$5000 Funds allocated to supplement the General Budget as needed.
Community Community Involvement 13-70-5940-000-500
Involvement
Funds are set aside to cover the cost of Summer Reading, additional programming, and
$38,500 outreach.
$3,000 Children’s Department
$1,000 Teen Department
$6,000 $1,000 Adult Department
INCREASE $2,000 Circulation Department Passive Programs
$1,000 Marketing
$10,500 Supplemental Program Funding, T-shirts and Prizes
$20,000 Cleaning (Dry Clean City), food (Sam’s), items for programs (Walmart, Hobby
Lobby, Home Goods, etc.)
Bank Charges Bank Charges 13-70-5990-000-500
$0 $0
$2,500
DECREASE

Merchant Fees
$3,500

$1,000
INCREASE

Merchant Fees 13-70-5992-000-500

$3,500 Library merchant fees

Purchase Office
and Computer
Equipment

$7,000

$900 INCREASE

Purchase Office and Computer Equipment 13-70-8100-000-500

$1,500 Dell Laptop for Proctors

$500 Windows 365 Link device

$3,500 2 Touchscreen computers to replace public catalogs
$1,500 Storage Cabinet for Technology Department

Page 19 of 21



Purchases Small
Equipment

$4,200

$400 INCREASE

Purchases Small Equipment 13-70-8150-000-500

$4,000 Technology Supplies
$200 Funds allocated to purchase additional items for makerspace programs for teens
and adults.

Purchases /
Periodical
Replacement

Purchases Periodical Replacement 13-70-8205-000-500

Level Funding

$500 $500 Funds allocated to supplement the General Budget as needed.
Capital Capital Purchases Cap (Under 5K) 13-70-8500-000-500

Purchases Cap

(Under 5K)

Capital Capital Purchases Cap (Over 5K) 13-70-8600-00-712

Purchases Cap

(Over 5K) Level Funding

$15,000 $10,000 Landscaping maintenance and new trail repairs

$5,000 Rooftop Garden Refreshing

Purchase Books
$400

$100 INCREASE

Purchase Books 13-70-8610-000-712

$300 Funds allocated to supplement the General Budget as needed.

BUDGET TOTAL

$236,500

Page 20 of 21



The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama

FY2026 Capital Improvement Worksheet Department: Library in the Forest
Due July 12, 2025
Project Name Expected GL Code  Expected Funding 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 Detail Description
Replacing interior and exterior lighting
with LEDs and removing outdated
Interior and Exterior Light Replacement / Retrofit (Priority 4) 20-70-8600-000-712 Capital Reserve 10,000 - - - - lighting ballasts.
Repainting walls and floorboards in
Interior Painting (Priority 5) 20-70-8600-000-712 Capital Reserve 5,000 - - - - various areas of facility.
Replacing broken ice machine in
Children's Department
Ice Machine Replacement (Priority 6) 20-70-8600-000-712 Capital Reserve 5,000 - - - - Kitchen/programming space
Replacing faulty Pressure Reducing
Valve on main water line entering the
Interior Water Valve Replacement (Priority 7) 20-70-8600-000-712 Capital Reserve 8,000 - - - -
Repair / replace siding in various areas
Exterior Siding Repair / Replacement (Priority 8) 20-70-8600-000-712 Capital Reserve 5,500 - - - - near the front and back of the facility
Installation of water, drainage, electricity,
and ventillation for Washing Machine
and Dryer; Purchasing Washing
Washer / Dryer Connection, Installation, and Purchase (Priority 9) 20-70-8600-000-712 Capital Reserve 10,000 - - - - Machine and Dryer
Purchasing 10 Dell AlIO Desktop
Computers to replace aged machines for
Patron Computer Replacement (Priority 10) 20-70-8500-000-500 Capital Reserve 19,000 - - - -
Purchasing 4 Dell AIO Desktop
Computers to replace aged machines for
Staff Computer Replacement (Priority 11) 20-70-8500-000-500 Capital Reserve 8,000 - - - -
Pressure washing sides of building,
sidewalks, and retaining walls
Pressure Washing Exterior of Building (Priority 12) 20-70-8600-000-712 Capital Reserve 25,000 - - - - surrounding parking lot
Replacing the bookdrops in Liberty Park
Bookdrop Replacements (Priority 13) 20-70-8600-000-712 Capital Reserve 20,000 - - - - / Cahaba Heights
Replacing current rooftop garden plants /
Rooftop Garden Revitalization 20-70-8600-000-712 Capital Reserve 25,000 - - - ammenities
Adding 2 Agati Pods to the Teen
Agati Pods Teen Department 20-70-8600-000-712 Capital Reserve - 30,000 - - - Department
Replacing carpet in Adult Department
Adult Carpet Replacement Upstairs 20-70-8600-000-712 Capital Reserve - 95,000 - - -
Replacing carpet in Administration /
Admin Carpet Replacement Downstairs 20-70-8600-000-712 Capital Reserve - 20,000 - - - Historical Room Downstairs
Reupholstering the chairs used by
Reupholstery - Patron Chairs 20-70-8600-000-712 Capital Reserve - 20,000 - - - patrons throughout the building
Replacing floor in the entryway / lobby
Lobby Floor Replacement 20-70-8600-000-712 Capital Reserve - - 35,000 - -
Replacing the tables / chairs currently
Tables / Chairs Community Room Replacement 20-70-8500-000-500 Capital Reserve - - 30,000 - - utilized in the Community Room
Replacing the Handicap / Accessibility
Handicap Door Replacement 20-70-8600-000-712 Capital Reserve - - - 15,000 - Door Mechanism in front entryway
Parking Lot Resurface 20-70-8600-000-712  [Capital Reserve 90,000 [Resurfacing the parking lot
Totals 115,500.00 190,000.00 65,000.00 15,000.00 90,000.00

Page 21 of 21



	 Meeting Items
	1. Call to Order - April MacLennan, Chair
	2. Approval Of Today's Agenda
	3. Approval Of Minutes from April 23, 2025
	April 2025 BOT Meeting Minutes

	4. Director's Report - Taneisha Tucker

	 New Business (Budget Review)
	5. General Fund Proposed Budget 2025-2026
	2025-2026 Proposed General Budget Narrative June 2025

	6. State Aid Budget 2025-2026
	7. Fund 13 Proposed Donations Budget 2025-2026
	2025-2026 Fund 13 Budget Narrative June 2025

	8. Capital Fund Proposed Budget 2025-2026
	Library Capital Budget FY2026


	 Informational Items
	 Adjournment

